

Minutes of the meeting of Commissioners held on Tuesday 9th May 2023 at 2.00pm in the Royal Lymington Yacht Club.

Present: Alison Towler (AT) (Chair), Jane Challener (JC), Philip Naylor (PN), Darren Longley (DL), Robert Willows (RWil), Chris Lisher (CL), Mike Bowles (MB), John Morrow (JM), Paul Harrison (PH)

Officers present: Ryan Willegers (RW) (Harbour Master & Chief Executive), Sarah Maynard (Administration Officer).

In Attendance: Rupert Wagstaff

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

1.1 There were no apologies.

2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

2.1 There were no new declarations of interest

3. MINUTES OF LAST MEETING (13th MARCH 2023)

3.1 The minutes were agreed and signed by AT.

4. MATTERS ARISING FROM MINUTES OF 13th MARCH 2023

4.1 Agenda Item 7.3 (Marketing & Communications Report) – RW referred to his board report highlighting initiatives to increase social media activity, including through short video clips to generate interest and increase awareness of harbour activities. With effect from the July meeting, the Marketing and Communications Officer has been asked to produce a report for every board meeting, incorporating relevant performance comparators for website and social media activity.

5. COMMISSIONERS

- 5.1 AT reported that interviews for a new Commissioner to take over from Jane Challener took place on Thursday 27th April 2023 with the interview panel including the Chair of the Lymington Harbour Advisory Group and Councillor Anne Corbridge as an independent person. As previously notified to the Commissioners, Sarah Unsworth, a senior partner at local solicitors Scott Bailey LLP was the successful candidate out of a strong field. It was proposed to appoint Sarah for an initial 3 year term commencing on Thursday 1st June 2023. **Proposed: JM**Seconded: PN

 Vote: All in Favour
- 5.2 AT reported that this will be JC's final meeting as a Harbour Commissioner, having come to the end of her second three-year term. JC also spent 7 months as a co-opted Commissioner at the start of her service. On behalf of the board of Commissioners and officers, AT thanked JC for her voluntary work on behalf of the Commission and local stakeholders over the last 6 ½ years. RW presented JC with a leaving gift and flowers and invited Commissioners to retire after the meeting for a farewell drink.

6. LYMINGTON HARBOUR ADVISORY GROUP (LHAG)

6.1 RWag had no matters to bring forward on behalf of LHAG. RWag indicated he would be arranging a meeting of LHAG in the next couple of months before the peak season started.

7. OFFICERS REPORT

- 7.1 Operations Manager Commissioners noted the operations report.
- 7.2 <u>Treasurer</u> Commissioners noted the Treasurer's report on casual income performance. RW highlighted the drop in visitor volumes and revenues for March and April compared with last year. This was consistent with Lymington Yacht Haven and Yarmouth who both experienced a fall in visitor numbers over the same period. Part of this was likely to be due to the adverse weather this year, but it was likely that the downturn in the economic climate was also a factor. RW indicated that the Operations Manager had reported that LHC still had a lot of empty resident moorings where owners had not returned their boats to the water. This was likely to have been reflected elsewhere, meaning that the number of active boats on the water who may consider visiting other harbours would be down.

8. SAFETY & PORT MARINE SAFETY CODE (PMSC)

- 8.1 <u>Trinity House Lighthouse Service (THLS) Inspection of Marks</u> RW reported that on the 07th March 2023, an officer of THLS inspected the aids to navigation under the management of Lymington Harbour Commissioners and found them to be in good and efficient order except for the two red and white ferry transit marks which were in need of repainting. These marks were due to have been replaced by Walcon Marine but they have been delayed due to adverse weather delaying other jobs and this will now be completed in June. Pending replacement of the piles, officers have installed reflective panels and the matter has been 'closed out' with THLS.
- 8.2 Port Marine Safety Code (PMSC) PMSC 2023 Compliance Audit An external audit to verify that LHC's Safety Management System is working effectively and is compliant with the provisions of the Port Marine Safety Code (PMSC) was undertaken in April by LHC's appointed Designated Person, Mr Montgomery Smedley (ABPmer). As part of the audit, Mr Montgomery met with JM to review his induction experience and his understanding of his role as a 'Duty Holder'. JM provided an update on the areas covered in the meeting which included his onboarding and induction experience, underpinning knowledge in relation to the Boards role as Duty Holder, and consideration of safety at board meetings. Mr Smedley also asked if Commissioners were given the opportunity to have a tour of the harbour to better understand the layout and how certain aspects work. RW indicated that there was a standing invitation to existing Commissioners to have a tour but that following a recommendation in the previous audit, this had now been incorporated as a formal documented part of the onboarding process for new Commissioners.

Following the audit, Mr Smedley also met with CL in his capacity as Chair of the Safety Committee to brief him on his report findings. CL referred to the report which had been circulated and briefed Commissioners on the main points of the audit and its conclusion that LHC's safety management system has complied with the provisions of the PMSC over the previous twelve months. Mr Smedley indicated that he considered LHC to be an exemplar port in terms of how it managed marine safety and PMSC compliance. The audit report made 4 observations with associated recommendations. RW reported that two of the observations had been actioned within the review of the MSMP/SMS which will be subject to consideration under the next agenda item. The remaining recommendations will be considered and worked on in the coming months.

8.3 Marine Safety Management Plan (MSMP) and Safety Management System (SMS) - As part of a formal annual review and taking account of any observations arising from the PMSC audit, RW reported that the MSMP and SMS have been updated. A tracked change copy of the updated version (v17) was circulated for Commissioners to consider and approve. CL asked that where the objectives in s1.4 were

over a greater timeframe than annual, as well as quoting the frequency could they also state the year the next action was due. AT highlighted a typo in s4.7 (third bullet point). Subject to incorporating the amendments raised by CL and AT, it was proposed to accept the updates and adopt MSMP/SMS v17 dated 9th May 2023. **Proposed: CL** Seconded: MB Vote: All in Favour.

- 8.4 <u>Solent & Southern Harbour Masters Meeting</u> RW reported that LHC will be hosting the next bi-annual meeting of the Solent & Southern Harbour Master Association (SASHMA) on the 6th June. The SASHMA region covers ports and harbours between Christchurch in the west and Shoreham in the east, and includes the Channel Islands.
- 8.5 New Oil Spill Response Boom RW reported that on the 12th April, LHC took delivery of a new 150m long oil spill response boom to complement the existing Tier 1 response equipment owned by Wightlink. The new boom which cost £20,000 has a higher freeboard and deeper skirt than existing equipment making it more capable in windier conditions and in stronger tidal flows. In addition, Wightlink has purchased a Versadock pontoon to store the new boom on. This will allow for faster deployment as the new boom can be towed (or motor under its own power with a small outboard) direct to the mobilisation site.
- 8.6 <u>Emergency Plan Exercise</u> RW reported that on the 5th and 20th April LHC undertook desk top exercises with the two separate outside teams to test LHC's emergency plan. Both exercises facilitated some useful discussion with several lessons learned being incorporated into amendments to the plan.

9. AOB

9.1 RW indicated that the latest news letter from the Hurst Spit to Lymington coast protection scheme had just been published and included details of dates for the next public exhibitions in June and July. RW to circulate. **Action: RW**

10. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

10.1 Monday 10th July at Lymington Town Sailing Club at 14.00 hours.